
APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 1 of 6 

     Town of Hinesburg 
     Development Review Board 

                                                      December 18th, 2012 
                                                             Approved 1/15/13 
 
Members  Present:  Tom McGlenn,  Dennis  Place,  Greg Waples  and  Kate Myhre,  Bill Moller, Dick 
Jordan arrived after the Minutes were approved.  
Members Absent: Zoë Wainer, Ted Bloomhardt 
 
Also Present: Peter Erb (Zoning Administrator), Alex Weinhagen (Director of Planning & Zoning), 
Renae Marshall  (Recording Secretary). 
Representing Applications: Peter Lazorchak (engineer for Balchiunas), Akiko Balchiunas, Steve & Lisa 
Carlson, Larry Caron 
Public  present  included:  Margery  Sharp,  Larry  Telford,  Diane  Telford,  John  Dunshee,  Nathaniel 
Norton, Judy Norton, Betsy Allen‐Pennebaker, Andrew Allen, Jody Ciano,  
 
Tom McGlenn chaired the meeting, which started at 7:35 pm. 
 
Minutes from December 4, 2012 meeting:  
Tom M. MOVED to approve as amended. Greg W. seconded the motion.  The motion PASSED 3‐0.  
Dennis P. and Kate M. abstained, as they were not present for this meeting. 
 

Akiko  Balchiunas—3‐lot  Subdivision  Sketch  Plan  Review  (Cont’d  from  11/20  &  12/4)—The 
applicant is requesting a subdivision sketch plan review to subdivide her 22.3 acre parcel into three 
residential lots.  Her property is located at 401 Butternut in the Rural Residential 2 District. 

Tom M. stated a site visit was held on Saturday, December 15th at 9:00 a.m.  Greg W. stated those in 
attendance were Greg W., Dennis P., Bill M., Kate M., Dick J., Peter Erb (Zoning Administrator), and 
Diane Telford (neighbor). 

Greg W.  gave  a  brief  overview of  the  site  visit.    They  drove  up  the  shared  driveway  and  once  it 
reached the Balchiunas property,  it narrowed down at  the point  it would need  to be expanded  if 
this subdivision were to be approved.  We walked up toward the eastern side of the property (this 
part was  a  revised access on  the most  recent plan).    They also  saw  the  location of  the proposed 
house sites on Lot 2.   They moved on  toward  the  southern end  to see Lot 3.   They observed  the 
canopy of trees that might be within the building envelope and those outside the building envelope 
to  address  clearing  issues  this  proposal  presents.    Then  they  came back  and  circled  around  in  a 
westerly trajectory along a logging road where the applicant had initially proposed a driveway but 
that presented more elevation difficulties.  

Peter Lazorchak (engineer for Balchiunas) noted that they had presented an alternative potential 
driveway  route  behind  the  house;  stays  higher  and wraps  around  the  contours  at  the  toe of  the 
steeper slopes.  All of the house sites would be located on the lower western side of that proposed 
driveway. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 2 of 6 

Greg W.  noted  that  he  did  observe  drainage  issues with  storm water  runoff  from  an  engineered 
driveway.  Bill M. noted that in Lot 2, he had observed a stream.  If it was mapped, there could be 
setback issues with the first proposed house site.   If  it was not mapped, he observed it was steep 
enough that it could pose a safety concern.  Alex clarified that there are not any mapped streams on 
the property. 

Alex commented that the proposed access has now moved (just prior to the site visit)  to the east 
side of the existing house and on south toward Lot 2 & Lot 3.  Alex suggested that the Board discuss 
with  the applicant what potential,  if any,  that  this project has and what hurdles might negatively 
impact it. 

Greg W. stated that after walking the site, he feels it has potential to be developed with preference 
toward the new easterly‐proposed access.  However this would involve a lot of blasting of ledge.  He 
also noted that the existing house is extremely close which presents a quality of life issue.  Greg W. 
voiced concerns with visibility  issues;  feels  like people would want  to do clearing  to allow better 
views.  He advised that the Board would need to consider how to allow some views but not create 
too much visibility.   The natural  features appear  to be  the deeryards but don’t  appear  to be well 
delineated.    He  also  cautioned  that  the  driveway  would  be  very  expensive  with  the  need  for 
extensive engineering.  As a Board, we would need to extremely vigilant with regard to the impact 
of run‐off for the neighbors below. 

Dick J. noted that the waterways tend to be straight down the hill with no meandering.  We would 
need  to  ensure  that  any  run‐off  that might  be  directed  toward  those,  be  done  so  in  a  very  slow 
fashion in order to not increase extensive direct downhill flow.  He noted that the back lot would be 
harder to access and very expensive to build a driveway to.  Greg W. made note of the logging road 
that  we  walked  on,  although  it  doesn’t  appear  it  has  a  legal  easement  in  title  searches  across 
property,  Greg W.  strongly  suggested  that  the  applicant  ensure  there  are  not  any  easements  by 
prescription that might prevent ability for future development. 

Peter Erb advised  the Board  to consider  the  impact of  the engineering and not  just  if  it  could be 
done or not.   Greg W. stated that this clearly would be a 3‐step process and that the property has 
huge constraints. 

Tom M. opened the floor to the public. 

John  Dunshee  stated  his  driveway  was  off  Magee  Hill  Road,  just  opposite  Butternut  Lane.    He 
wondered if the road would be widened or not; he was concerned about traffic on the road.  Akiko 
B. replied that Dawn Francis had stated in past meetings that they felt that portion of the road was 
sufficient and wouldn’t need to be further improved.  Greg W. stated that they had noted on the site 
visit that the shared driveway seemed completely adequate to accommodate the proposed houses. 

Larry Telford lives at 325 Cattail Lane.  He commented on the references to no mapped streams in 
the area.  He stated that on‐line he had found a state provided map of the area.  He noted there is a 
stream that appears to end just east of the area as if they simply stopped mapping.  However, Larry 
T. noted that there is a stream that is most active in the spring.  He marked it with the blue masking 
tape for the site visit. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 3 of 6 

Nathaniel Norton introduced himself as nearby neighbor.  He stated that he is a bird hunter and has 
spent a lot of time walking the property.  He commented that the land is very steep.  He also noted 
that the area just west of Lot 3 is very wet.  A lot of animal traffic up there; more than a few deer 
yards.    He  suggested  it might  be  worthwhile  to  have  Sue Morse  come  talk  about  natural  traffic 
patterns of other animals. 

Judy Norton lives below the Telford’s.  She feels there would be a lot of blasting required.  She has 
concerns that this will impact those living nearby and change the terrain of the property.  

Tom M.  asked  if  we  have maps  of  view  sheds  of  the  areas where  it  is  visible  from  surrounding 
public  roads.    Alex  replied  that  we  do  have  visibility  maps  and  this  is  in  an  area  of  moderate 
visibility from surrounding roads. Nathaniel N. stated the entire ridge is highly visible from Oak Hill 
Rd. (Pond Rd). 

Alex  stated  that  this  is  important  for  the  landowner  to  have  a  clear  indication  from  the  Board, 
through the decision, as to whether those bigger planning standard issues related to the impact on 
natural features and natural communities are acceptable given the design of the project.  This is not 
a  clustered  design;  it  doesn’t  place  the  new  development  close  to  the  existing  development.  
Because  of  the  shape  of  the  lot,  the  development  is  placed  all  the  way  to  the  back  of  the  lot.  
However,  we  do  have  planning  standards  in  our  regulations  that  help  determine  if  this  type  of 
development is appropriate in this part of town.   

Peter L. stated that Lot 3 is on a mellow slope but does drop down rather quickly.   He noted that 
they would be proposing some reasonable screening and protection of  the canopy  in  front of  the 
house.  He stated in terms of ledge & blasting, that this might not be as bad as it seems, as it is good 
road building material.   

Dick J. commented that the picture shows a straight shot for the proposed access but based on site 
visit, he  felt  there  is no way  it can be a straight shot based on  the  topography and feels  it would 
require  switch  backs.    Peter  L.  stated  the  eastern  route will minimize  the  need  for  switchbacks.  
Dick  J.  stated  he  couldn’t  envision  how  you  would  achieve  a  10%  slope  there  without  using 
switchbacks.  Peter L. acknowledged that would need to be revisited later. 

Greg W. stated that he is sensitive to Alex’s point about natural features.  However, at this point he 
doesn’t feel they have enough evidence to conclude if this project is doable or not.  This issue could 
potentially dead‐end this project at any point as more evidence becomes available.  He feels going 
to preliminary would be very  expensive  for  the applicant with  the  risk of  it  being denied at  that 
level after extensive money has been spent on engineering. 

John  D.  stated  that  he  understood  at  one  point,  the  Town  Plan  was  against  development  at 
ridgelines.  Alex replied that it is true that the Town Plan calls out certain sensitive areas, important 
natural resources, and relies on regulations and the DRB’s interpretation of those regulations.  Alex 
noted that slopes in excess of 25% cover the bulk of the parcel. 

Peter E. (Zoning Administrator) stated that in terms of storm water, state regulations address up to 
20 year events.  He suggested that the Board discuss if they would want to protect further than that.  
Kate M. feels it will be necessary to protect the natural resources, as the Board will need to meet the 
requirements based on the regulations and could potentially hold this project up. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 4 of 6 

Alex stated the Board basically has two options: 

1.) Move  project  forward  and  have  engineer  address  the  concerns  and  make  decision  at 
preliminary. 

2.) Deny  this  application  stating  that  this  sketch  plan  isn’t  the  right  one  and  have  applicant 
return with a new one. 

Greg W. felt this application should be continued at sketch level and have the applicant go back and 
get more information regarding these natural features, before the Board makes a yes or no decision. 
Peter L. stated that they did have a biologist on staff, come out in particular to review the deeryard 
issue.    She  noted  that  deer  do  travel  through  this  area  however  she  didn’t  feel  it  was  a  deer 
wintering area where a large number of deer are spending a lot of time.  Her opinion was that this 
proposal wouldn’t impact the deer traveling through this area.  Greg W. commented that he would 
be  interested  in  seeing  any  additional  information  they  might  have  prior  to  making  a  decision. 
Nathaniel N. noted in Lot 3 at the bottom corner on the left is an old graveyard. 

Much discussion was had with  regard  to how Akiko would want  to proceed –  continue sketch  to 
future meeting or close the public hearing and leave the decision up to the Board.   Peter L stated 
that  engineering  could  reach  a  point  that  he  couldn’t  meet  the  Board’s  standards.    Greg  W. 
personally felt that the DRB could get together and offer the applicant and her engineer a few bullet 
points that could help them determine if this project can move forward or not. 

Dick  J.  voiced concerns with  regard  to  creation of  the  lots at  sketch plan. Alex  stated  that  sketch 
plan is only a conceptual approval of the lots.  Actual lots are created at final approval. 

Tom M. made a motion that the subdivision is a 3‐step process because of some hurdles and 
we will  close  the  public  hearing  and  take  the matter  up  in  deliberative  session.   Greg W. 
seconded the motion; all in favor. 

Steve & Lisa Carlson: (Subdivision Sketch Plan Review) – Applicants are  requesting  subdivision 
sketch plan review for the purpose of creating a 2‐lot subdivision to place an existing house and an 
existing  camp  on  separate  lots.    This  property  is  located  at  85  Upper  Access  Road  in  the  Rural 
Residential 1 District. 

Lisa Carlson stated  that  the  latest  reason  for  interest  in  selling  is  to  reduce our  tax  implications.  
Steve Carlson stated that we are not asking to do any new construction; only separating parcel into 
2 lots – one with house and one with the camp.  Lisa C. added that the house has a full septic and 
well.   The camp is seasonal for 214 days/year.   It has limited septic and a well.    It can be utilized 
year‐round as an office. 

Andrew Allen resides at 250 Wood Run, which is below the Carlson camp.  He stated there is a 42‐
foot strip of land that goes down to the lake.  Our (he & his wife) major concern is regarding lake 
rights – will the lake rights for this strip of land now be shared for all properties rather than only a 
couple?  Will this be in their deeds? 

Lisa C. stated that they currently have 10 families that have deeded rights for swimming on our lake 
front..  She doesn’t feel this subdivision will impact this number.  She added that they did give water 
rights to the people who bought the new building lot.  Andrew asked for clarification if all of those 
lots do have lake rights and was it approved at the last approval. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 5 of 6 

Peter E. stated that this was never reviewed at the previous approval.   Andrew A. asked how lake 
rights are issued.  Greg W. replied that our subdivision regulations do not outline this.  It would be a 
matter of Vermont property law. 

Jody Ciano lives on Wheatley Road next to the Carlson camp.  She stated that the 10 families are the 
people who live on Wood Run.   They are allowed only to come as far as the dam, not the 42‐foot 
strip  of  lake  front  property  that  the  Carlson’s  have.    She  feels  the  concern  is  that  not  too many 
people  be  allowed  on  this  42‐foot  strip  of  land.    Steve  C.  replied  that  they  (the  Carlson’s)  aren’t 
changing or adding any rights.  Our guests at the cottage currently use the lake. 

Betsy  Allen‐Pennebaker  stated  that  although  the  use  isn’t  changing  now,  it  could  change  in  the 
future which is why we would like it addressed at this time to prevent further impact.   

Dick J. stated in reference to access to cross  lots to gain access to the  lake, he questioned if  there 
would need to be a delineated corridor on the plat for access to the lake.  Peter E. replied if there 
are deeded rights then that would need to be reflected on the final plat. 

Tom M. made a Motion to close the public hearing and direct staff to come up with conditions 
of approval.  Dennis P. seconded the motion; all approved. 

Lawrence & Cynthia Caron: (Subdivision Sketch Plan Review) – Applicants are requesting sketch 
plan review for a 3‐lot subdivision in order to create two new building lots.  This property is located 
at 274 Richmond Road in the Rural Residential 1 District. 

George Bedard (Surveyor) stated that this property was before the Board 10 years ago when Muriel 
Manning owned it and was granted sketch plan approval (which has since expired) for a similar 3‐
lot subdivision.  The applicants are currently requesting to divide the property into 3 separate lots 
as a regular subdivision.  The two new lots would each would have Town water & sewer.  Each lot 
would  be  on  over  one  acre  of  property.  Lot  1  is  located  opposite  Orchard  Commons  and would 
include the existing house on its own lot.  Lots 2 & 3 have proposed access off of Partridge Hill Road. 
Access would be located across a 50‐foot right of way as stated in the Howard property deed.   

George B. noted that the horseshoe driveway of Lot 1 has been reduced to the upper road cut.  He 
also added that the intersection of Partridge Hill Road & Richmond road has vastly improved from 
10 years ago.  It is now a t‐intersection and now is posted at a low speed limit of 25 m.p.h.  He noted 
that there are 10 residences uphill from the proposed access off of Partridge Hill Road.  George B. 
noted that Lot # 3 will be subject to a stream setback of 75 feet along its westerly boundary and 
there is a deeded 20’ wide waterline easement that falls within that stream setback. 

Greg W. pointed out that Mike Anthony (Road Foreman) was not fond of the road cut on Partridge 
Hill and felt the increased traffic would create safety issues due to the Town maintained portion of 
Partridge Hill Road being highly constrained.  George replied that he doesn’t feel these two lots will 
add much traffic.  He feels this is a neighborhood with built‐in traffic calming.  It is not a high‐speed 
road by any means and he feels it will fit in well with the neighborhood. 

The Board discussed the need for a planned site visit or for each member to visit the property on 
their  own.    George  B.  will  stake  out  the  right  of  way  and  will  place  a  stake  at  the  T  of  the  3 
properties. Dick  J.  asked  if  there  are  issues with  agricultural  soils.   Alex  replied  that  they  are no 
longer used as agricultural soils due to the heavier residential development in this part of town. 



APPROVED DRB Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2012      page 6 of 6 

Tom M. made a Motion to continue this application to the January 29th meeting and encourage 
members to conduct site visits on their own.   Greg W. seconded the motion; all in favor. 

Tom  M.  made  a  Motion  to  close  the  public  hearing  and  go  into  deliberative  session  for 
decision deliberation on Hinesburg Village Center, LLC, Town of Hinesburg/Bissonette, and 
George & Jan Bedard and discussion of applications from this evening.  The Board entered into 
deliberative session at 9:05 p.m. 

Kate M. left the meeting after deliberations on the Balchiunas application.   

Greg W. made a Motion to approve the Hinesburg Village Center conditional use and site plan 
decision as drafted.  Tom M. seconded the motion.  The motion PASSED 5‐0. 

Greg  W.  made  a  Motion  to  approve  the  Haystack  Crossing  LLC  (Bissonette,  Town  of 
Hinesburg) subdivision sketch plan decision as drafted.   Tom M. seconded  the motion. The 
motion PASSED 5‐0. 

Tom M. made  a Motion  to  approve  the Bedard  subdivision  sketch  plan  decison  as  drafted. 
Dennis  P. seconded  the motion.   The motion PASSED 4‐1.    Tom M., Dennis  P.,  Dick  J.  voted  to 
approve at  the meeting.   Ted B. voted  to approve via email ahead of  the meeting.   Greg W. voted 
against the motion.  Bill Moller abstained. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:51 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Renae Marshall – Recording Secretary 
 

 


